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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
GRANT MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS 

 

The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (“Corporation”) seeks proposals from qualified 
firms to provide a grant management software solution. 

 
 
Question #1:   How many internal users will need access to the Grants Management System? 

Answer #1:    Fewer than ten internal grants management staff will need to be primary 

users/administrators within the tool and additional staff will need to have access for application 

reviews. 

 
 
Question #2:   Will you need a Gov Cloud compliant environment? 

Answer #2:    Gov Cloud compliance is preferred but not required.  

 
 
Question #3:   How many external users do you anticipate applying for Grants on an annual basis? How 

frequently do you anticipate these applicants will log into the Grants Management System? 

Answer #3:    The Corporation conservatively anticipates approximately 500 applications will be 

collected annually for these six programs. 

 

Question #4:   Does the Corporation use any existing systems (accounting, ERP, etc.) that need to 

integrate with the grant management solution? 

Answer #4:    The Corporation’s accounting system would ideally integrate into the grant 

management solution. Additionally, REST API/Native Connections are preferred for analytics platforms 

such as Domo, Qlik, and Microsoft Fabric. The primary objective of the integration is to ensure accurate 

and timely reconciliation of grant awards and disbursements between systems, reducing reliance on 

manual exports, duplicate data entry, and labor-intensive financial comparisons. 

Vendors should describe the supported integration methods, typical data flows, and any limitations or 

assumptions associated with their approach. 

 

 



Question #5:  What is the anticipated maximum file size for uploads and expected annual storage 

capacity needed?  

Answer #5:    The average file size for the Wavemaker program, which requires the most data upload 

of all our programs, is 4,000kb. The high end of an Innovation Voucher application is 2,000kb.  

 

Question #6:   Are any of the six grant programs currently active or accepting applications? What are 

the critical go-live timing requirements? 

Answer #6:   All six grant programs are active. The first two programs will need to go live in Q2 2026; 

other programs can be phased in during Q2-Q3.  

 

Question #7:   Should all six programs launch simultaneously, or would a phased approach be 

acceptable? If phased, which program(s) are priority? 

Answer #7:   A phased approach is acceptable. The Innovation Voucher program runs quarterly; the 

Wavemaker program will next launch in spring 2026. These are the top priority projects.  

 

Question #8:   What specific post-award activities need to be tracked (invoice processing, milestone 

reporting, compliance documentation)? How frequently do awardees submit reports? 

Answer #8:   Post-award activities include, but are not limited to award agreements, project 

milestones, collection of Certificate of Good Standing (COGS) and Letter of Good Standing (LOGS), ACH 

forms, invoice and payment processing, and quarterly reports.  

 

Question #9:   Do all six grant programs follow similar workflows, or are there significant differences in 

eligibility review, scoring, and approval processes? 

Answer #9:   Each grant program has its own eligibility review and scoring process. Three of the 

programs, however, are by-right programs, limiting the scoring/merit evaluation requirements.  

 

Question #10:   Are there specific reports required by Rhode Island state oversight bodies? If so, can you 

provide templates or specifications? 

Answer #10:   The Corporation is required to report quarterly on funds awarded and funds distributed. 

In some cases, we are also required to report on leveraged funding for projects. All reporting for the 

Corporation can be found on the Open Government/Transparency section of our website.  

 

Question #11:   Are there specific Rhode Island state security standards or certifications (SOC 2, 

StateRAMP, etc.) that the solution must meet? 

Answer #11:  The Corporation may review vendors’ security practices using recognized frameworks 

such as SOC 2, CIS IG 2 (or equivalent), PCI DSS, NIST SP 800-171/171A, FedRAMP or CMMC Level 2, as 



applicable. The Corporation additionally will review for Proposers’ options to implement identity 

controls (e.g., Single Sign On; Multifactor Authentication); group permissions mapping with Entra SSO; 

and encryption and granular access controls features, functions, and data. 

 

Question #12:   Should the proposal separate implementation costs from annual subscription fees? 

What is the preferred pricing model (per-user, flat fee, etc.)? 

Answer #12:   The proposal should separate implementation costs from annual subscription fee. 

Pricing should provide per user costs as well as any other relevant cost breakdowns.  

 

Question #13:  How many additional grant programs does the Corporation anticipate adding in years 2-

4 of the potential contract?   

Answer #13:   The Corporation will determine the number of additional programs as needed.  

 

Question #14:   Approximately how many total internal users are expected to access the system 

(including administrators, grant managers, and reviewers)? 

Answer #14:   See answer to Q1.  

 

Question #15:   Approximately how many external users (applicants, collaborators, awardees) are 

anticipated annually? 

Answer #15:    See answer to Q3.  

 

Question #16:   Are all application reviewers and scorers internal to the Corporation, or will any external 

participants (e.g., advisory board members, committee members, or third-party reviewers) be involved 

in the review and scoring process? 

Answer #16:   Presently, all reviewers and scorers are internal to the Corporation. It is possible that 

external participants may need to be involved in the review and scoring process in the future.  

 

Question #17:   Are the six initial grant programs funded through a single funding source, or do they 

represent multiple funding sources with potentially different compliance or reporting requirements? 

Answer #17:   The six initial grant programs are all funded through state appropriations. However, 

they require somewhat different programmatic reporting requirements.  

 
 
Question #18:   Can the Corporation provide a brief overview of the six grant programs (e.g., applicant 

types, application complexity, review structure), or otherwise comment on the relative complexity and 

variation across these programs? 



Answer #18:   The Innovation Voucher program requires businesses to complete a form (with some 

long-form) as well as upload documents; it is reviewed by an internal committee. The Network Matching 

Grant program requires business intermediaries to complete a form (with some long-form) as well as 

upload documents; it is reviewed by an internal committee. The Wavemaker program requires 

individuals to complete a form and upload documents; it is reviewed for eligibility and the selection is 

separately brought to a committee. The other programs through the Innovate RI Small Business Fund, 

similarly require form completion and document upload and are selected through administrative 

processes based on eligibility and fund availability.  

 
 
Question #19:   Please confirm whether post-award activities are limited to progress and financial 

reporting, or if they may also include repayment. 

Answer #19:   See answer to Q8.    

 

Question #20:   What types of reporting are expected from awardees (e.g., narrative reports, financial 

reports, invoices, performance metrics), and at what frequency? 

Answer #20:   Reporting includes invoicing, performance metrics verifications, and other 

requirements. Programs do not require reporting any more frequently than bi-annually.  

 

Question #21:   Are there any anticipated integrations with existing systems (e.g., finance, accounting, 

CRM, document management, or identity management platforms), either currently in use or planned? 

Answer #21:   See answer to Q4. 

 

Question #22:   Is the Corporation seeking a technical architecture partner rather than a strategic 

advisory-only role for Task 4? 

Answer #22:   The Corporation is seeking a technical architecture partner. Proposers are not expected 

to  build out the network, but will provide the Corporation and OTH partners with guidance on structure 

to leverage and align current assets.  

 

Question #23:  What types of standard or ad-hoc reports are expected for internal agency use? 

Answer #23:   Program status reports will need to be generated on an ad hoc basis, including but not 

limited to information like award dates and funding and distribution-to-date amounts.  

 

 

Question #24:  Is there a need for advanced or complex reporting that may require integration with 

business intelligence tools such as Power BI or Tableau? 

Answer #24:  Yes. The organization requires advanced and complex reporting capabilities that extend 

beyond native application reports. The solution must support integration with enterprise business 

intelligence and analytics platforms (e.g., Power BI, Tableau, or equivalent) to enable cross-system 



analysis, executive-level dashboards, performance tracking, and longitudinal reporting. This includes 

access to structured data via APIs, direct database connections, or scheduled exports suitable for use in 

external BI tools. 

 

 

Question #25:  Does the Corporation have any preferred or prohibited technologies, platforms, or 

hosting models (e.g., SaaS, cloud-hosted, vendor-hosted)? 

Answer #25:  No. 

 

 

Question #26:  Has the Corporation previously evaluated or demoed grant management software 

solutions, and if so, are there any key learnings or preferences that vendors should be aware of? 

Answer #26:  Yes. The Corporation’s learnings and preferences for the system have been incorporated 

into this RFP.  

 

 

Question #27:  Does the Corporation have a preferred implementation approach (e.g., Agile, Waterfall, 

or a hybrid methodology), or should vendors propose an approach aligned with the project scope and 

timeline? 

Answer #27:  The vendor should propose an approach.  

 

Question #28:  Will Rhode Island Commerce please provide additional details on the six grant programs 

anticipated to use the grant management system during the first year (e.g., program purpose, applicant 

type, and grant lifecycle)? 

Answer #28:  See answer to Q18. 

  

Question #29:  Will Rhode Island Commerce please provide a target implementation and go-live 

timeline for the grant management system? 

Answer #29:  See answer to Q6. 

  

Question #30:  Are there existing application forms, scoring rubrics, and reporting templates that 

proposers should expect to configure, or should proposers assume these will be newly developed? 

Answer #30:  There are existing application forms, scoring rubrics, and reporting templates.  

  

Question #31:  Will Rhode Island Commerce clarify the anticipated launch or application open dates 

(i.e., trigger dates) for each of the six grant programs? 

Answer #31: See answer to Q6.  

  



Question #32:  Task 1: Will Rhode Island Commerce describe the format and volume of historical grant 

program data? 

Answer #32: Historical data is available via Excel; over 10 years of programs, the Wavemaker 

program has had around 1,500 fellows. The largest program apart from Wavemaker has 154 awards 

made over 10 years.  

  

Question #33:  Task 4: What Service Level Agreement (SLA) response timeframe is desired for 

troubleshooting and technical assistance? 

Answer #33:       Proposers should provide response timeframes.  

  

Question #34:  Are any integrations with other software platforms (task management, financial, etc.) 

required or requested with the grant management software solution? If yes, please describe the 

software and functionality desired. 

Answer #34:  See answer to Q4.  

  

Question #35:  Do you have a go-live date in mind that the system needs to be fully operational by? 

Answer #35:       See answer to Q6.   

  

Question #36:  Do you have examples of the six (6) Grant Submissions or Grant Applications that can be 

reviewed. Do any of these Grant Applications have dynamic or follow-on logic that needs to be put in 

place within the new system? 

Answer #36: See answer to Q18. Also, yes, some applications have follow-on logic that needs to be 

put in place. 

  

Question #37:  Can you disclose the amount of historical submissions that would be needed to migrate 

into the new solution? 

Answer #37:       Approximately 2,200 historical submissions will need to be migrated.  

  

Question #38:  Can you disclose the number of internal and departmental reviews that would be 

needed per each application? Are there any strategic gates that need to be in place to guide these 

reviews? 

Answer #38: Each application goes through 1-3 rounds of internal review.  

  

Question #39:  Is there an intent to have e-signature as a part of the new Grant Portal? 



Answer #39: E-signature enabled in the grant management system would be preferred. 

  

Question #40:  Are there any external integrations that will be included in this build? 

Answer #40:       See answer to Q4. 

  

Question #41:  Is there an intent to track and maintain after-award progress monitoring or reporting 

that will be needed to filled out in accordance with the Grant schedule? does this need to be maintained 

and tracked as another functionality in the system? 

Answer #41: See answers to Q8 and Q10. 

  

Question #42:  Will The Corporation work to clean and prepare historical grant program data in order to 

upload into the new software solution? 

Answer #42: The Corporation will endeavor to provide clean data for upload.  

  

Question #43:  Does the Corporation Staff intend on facilitating end-user training? Is Train-the-trainer 

style training acceptable to the internal Corporation? 

Answer #43: Yes. 

  

Question #44:  Does the Corporation intend to store and maintain all files associated with the Grant 

within the to-be-built solution? Or will there be an integration into another system of record for that? 

Answer #44:       The Corporation has records retention requirements. Proposers should explain the file 

retention and storage capacities of their system.  

  

Question #45:  Are there any other features that have not been discussed pertaining to the Grants 

Portal that would be needed for facilitation of the Grant process? such items could be, but not limited 

to: FAQ / Knowledge Management; Embedded Training and guidance Workflows; Registration and pre-

access vetting; Publication of Award Notices or Notice of Funding; and Integration with Single-Sign-On 

(SSO) Corporation provided infrastructure for external user management 

Answer #45: Additional elements such as FAQs and training materials will be made available on the 

Corporation’s website.  

  

Question #46:  What sort of Post-Production support or Ongoing Operations and Maintenance (O&M) 

Support does the Corporation require? 

Answer #46: The Corporation requires as-needed troubleshooting and technical support post-

production. 



  

Question #47:  How much budget has been allocated for this project (inclusive of platform costs and 

implementation/training service costs)? 

Answer #47: Proposers should provide budgets that appropriately and efficiently accomplish the 

tasks outlined in the scope of work.  

  

Question #48:  Does Rhode Island have any restrictions of off-shore resources if we were to position a 

hybrid resource model (both on-shore and off-shore)? 

Answer #48: Not explicitly, but all services must comply with applicable state and federal laws. See 

answer to Q11 as well.  

  

Question #49:  What is the funding amount allocated for each of the six grants? Is this funding expected 

annual?  

Answer #49: The funding is expected to be reauthorized annually. The Innovation Voucher, Invention 

Incentive, and Network Matching Grant programs receive $1M annually. The Wavemaker program 

allocations vary between $800,000 and over $4M historically; other programs collectively receive $1M.  

  

Question #50:  For the converted data, can you outline the estimated number of records that will need 

to be migrated? 

Answer #50:  See answer to Q36.  

  

Question #51:  What is the estimated go-live timeline for this project? 

Answer #51: See answer to Q6. 

  

Question #52:  Can the Corporation provide the names and high-level descriptions of the six grant 

programs that will launch in Year 1? 

Answer #52: See answer to Q18. 

  

Question #53:  What are typical grant award sizes for each program? 

Answer #53: Typical grant award sizes range up to $6,000 for the Wavemaker Program, up to $5,000 

for the Invention Incentive Program, up to $75,000 for Innovation Voucher Program and at least $50,000 

for the Network Matching Grant Program. The other programs provide matching funds based on federal 

awards, which vary.  

  



Question #54:  Are there anticipated additional grant programs beyond the initial six in Years 2-4? If so, 

approximately how many programs might be added annually? 

Answer #54: The Corporation reserves the right to add additional grant programs after the first year 

of the contract.  

  

Question #55:  How many reviewers typically evaluate each application? Are there reviewer conflicts of 

interest workflows that need to be managed? 

Answer #55:       One to six reviewers typically review applications. There are not typically reviewer 

conflicts of interest workflows that need to be managed.  

  

Question #56:  Do you require applicant presentations, interviews, or site visits as part of the review 

process? If so, does this need to be tracked in the system? 

Answer #56: No. 

  

Question #57:  What are typical grant terms (duration from award to closeout)? Do most grants run 12 

months, or do you manage multi-year awards? 

Answer #57: Grant terms range from 6 months to 4 years.  

  

Question #58:  What reporting is required from awardees (e.g., quarterly financial reports, annual 

outcome reports, project milestone updates)? What documentation must awardees submit to 

demonstrate compliance? 

Answer #58: See answers to Q8 and Q10. 

  

Question #59:  What systems currently house grant application or financial data? Do you use accounting 

software (e.g., QuickBooks, Sage, ERP systems) that should integrate with the grants management 

platform? 

Answer #59: See answer to Q4. Additionally, grant data is presently in Sharepoint and a proprietary 

asset management system. Accounting data is presently housed on Great Plains.  

  

Question #60:  Does the Corporation have data residency requirements (e.g., data must remain in US 

data centers) or specific security certifications required (SOC 2, ISO 27001, FedRAMP)? 

Answer #60: See answers to Q11 and Q48. 

  



Question #61:  The RFP mentions "fewer than ten" primary users/administrators and "additional staff" 

for reviews. Can you provide approximate numbers for each user type: system administrators, grant 

managers, reviewers, and read-only reporting users? 

Answer #61: Proposers should define how their system defines user roles. The Corporation 

anticipates fewer than ten primary users/”system administrators” and approximately 15 additional 

users. This number is subject to negotiation with the selected Proposer.  

  

Question #62:  Are external reviewers (e.g., industry experts, community representatives) involved in 

application evaluation? If so, approximately how many external reviewers participate, and what access 

level do they require? 

Answer #62: External reviewers are rarely involved in the application evaluations.  See also answer to 

Q16.  

  

Question #63:  Is there a preferred go-live date or a deadline by which the system must be operational 

for a specific program cycle? 

Answer #63: See answer to Q6. 

  

Question #64:  Would the Corporation prefer a phased rollout (launching with 1-2 programs, then 

adding others) or a single cutover for all six programs simultaneously? 

Answer #64: See answer to Q7. 

  

Question #65:  What metrics does the Corporation currently track for grant program performance (e.g., 

processing time, award rates, compliance rates)? 

Answer #65: The Corporation is implementing a Grant Management System for the first time.  

  

Question #66:  Are there specific reporting requirements for Corporation leadership, the Board of 

Directors, or state oversight bodies that the system should accommodate? 

Answer #66: Program-specific reporting requirements will need to be included in the Grant 

Management System. These reports include metrics like revenue generated, funding leveraged, and job 

growth. Additionally, see answer to Q10. 

  

Question #67:  What would constitute a successful first year of operation from the Corporation's 

perspective? What outcomes would make you confident in the platform investment? 

Answer #67: Smooth transition of data, roll-out of new applications, and integrated work flow with 

other Corporation systems. Additionally, please refer to the Evaluation Criteria in the RFP.  

  



Question #68:  For the "Demonstrated Capability of Software" criterion (30 points), will the Corporation 

conduct product demonstrations as part of the evaluation, or will scoring be based solely on written 

proposals? 

Answer #68: The Corporation reserves the right to conduct product demonstrations prior to 

selection.  

  

Question #69:  Does the Corporation have an approved budget for this new Grant Management 

Software Solutions (GMSS)? 

Answer #69: See answer to Q47. 

  

Question #70:  Has the Corporation previously entertained any system demonstrations and/or 

presentations from vendors? If so, which systems were seen and when? 

Answer #70: See answer to Q26. 

  

Question #71:  Did the corporation utilize any vendor / Subject Matter Experts (SME) consultants in 

defining the sought-after functionality and/or scope of work enumerated in the RFP? If yes, please 

provide the name of the vendor/consultant. 

Answer #71: No. 

  

Question #72:  If the Corporation is using an existing GMSS, what are the current pain points with the 

solution and the concerned vendor? 

Answer #72: See answer to Q65. 

  

Question #73:  Given the requirement to manage federal funds, does the Corporation require vendors 

who have experience deploying GMSS at the federal level? 

Answer #73: Deploying GMSS at the federal level is not a requirement. Please refer to the RFP 

Evaluation Criteria and Proposer Qualifications.  

  

Question #74: Can you provide the annual dollar amount of grant funding you receive for the current 

fiscal year? 

Answer #74: See answer to Q49. 

  

Question #75:  What dollar volume of these grants are pass-through grants to sub-grantees? 

Answer #75: All grants are made to awardees.  



  

Question #76:  What is the total dollar amount of grants awarded/distributed? 

Answer #76: See answer to Q53. 

  

Question #77:  Does the Corporation have a timeline / anticipated go-live date for the new system? 

Answer #77: See answer to Q6. 

  

Question #78:  How many separate grant programs does the Corporation manage? Please provide a list 

if possible. 

Answer #78: The Corporation’s grant programs are all available on our website at 

http://commerceri.com.  

  

Question #79:  Do the business processes (application, pre-award, award, etc.) and associated forms 

vary with each type of program, or are all processes and forms standardized? 

Answer #79: See answer to Q9. 

  

Question #80:  When do each of the programs’ application periods begin in a given fiscal year? 

Answer #80: The application periods vary; some are quarterly, some are annual, and some are 

variable across fiscal years.  

  

Question #81:  How does the corporation manage its grants today? If vendor-provided solution is 

deployed, which vendor provided it to the Corporation? 

Answer #81: The Corporation intakes grants through Smartsheet as well as a proprietary asset 

management software.  

  

Question #82:  What systems, both internal and external, does the Corporation need the new GMS to 

integrate with? Can you provide details for the integration (capability, data, etc.)? 

Answer #82: See answer to Q4. 

  

Question #83:  What version of your financial management system is currently being used? 

Answer #83: See answer to Q59. 

  

http://commerceri.com/


Question #84:  Please provide the current modules that are implemented within the financial 

management system. Also, can you provide the expectation for the type of integration required, e.g., 

web services, file-based, one-way, or bi-directional data flow? 

Answer #84: Our current financial management system is Microsoft Dynamics GP. The Corporation 

notes that this system is subject to change over time, and the Grant Management System should not 

rely on proprietary or hard-coded integrations tied to a single financial platform. The organization 

prefers standards-based web services / API integrations to enable automated, secure, and scalable data 

exchange between the Grant Management System and the financial management system. 

Bi-directional data flow is preferred, particularly for grant awards, budget approvals, payment requests, 

and disbursement confirmations. One-way or file-based integrations may be acceptable for limited use 

cases but are not preferred for core grant financial workflows. 

  

Question #85:  Is data migration required? If yes, can you provide an estimate of the volume of data to 

be converted and migrated into the new GMSS? 

Answer #85: See answers to Q32 and Q37. 

  

Question #86:  What is the current format of this grant data? Please provide an example row of data 

and/or database schema. 

Answer #86: See answer to Q31. Example fields include: Business Name, Contact Name, Address, 

Phone Number, Email, Award Amount, Award Date, Grant Term End Date.  

  

Question #87:  Please provide the following breakdown: 

How many Corporation staff will access/log into the GMSS more than 20 hours a month? 

How many Corporation staff will access/log into the GMSS less than 20 hours a month? 

How many Grantee/Recipient users will need access to the GMSS? 

How many internal Corporation staff ONLY review applications? 

How many external users will ONLY review applications? 

Answer #87:  Fewer than ten Corporation staff may be logged in more than 20 hours per month. 

Corporation staff who review applications typically will be logged in fewer than 20 hours per month on 

average. Staff reviewers will likely number no more than 20 unique individuals annually. Also see answer 

to Q61.  

The Corporation anticipates that we will receive approximately 500 applications annually. Of these 

approximately 100 organizations will be awarded grants annually and their staff will need access for 

grant reporting purposes and approximately 500  individuals will need access for their individual grants 

(The corporation awards approximately 175 individual awards annually and awardees are active 

recipients for multiple years.) 

  

Question #88:  Are there any file size limits for email submissions? 

Answer #88: The Corporation has not experienced email issues due to file sizes to date.   



  

Question #89:  Could the Corporation provide more details on the evaluation subcriteria? Specifically, 

what factors will be assessed other than those specifically mentioned in the RFP, and what weighting 

will be assigned to each? 

Answer #89: The points weighting is articulated in the RFP. The Corporation will review responses 

based on the Evaluation Criteria in the RFP as well as the proposer qualifications.  

  

Question #90:  Can the Corporation provide a sample contract and/or terms and conditions for review 

prior to the proposal due date? 

Answer #90: No.  

  

Question #91:  Since the respondent must certify in Section 4 that it will maintain required insurance, 

please provide types and limits for review if they are not included in the sample contract. 

Answer #91: The selected vendor will be required to maintain the following insurance for the term of 

the agreement: statutory workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance ($100,000 per 

accident, $100,000 per employee, $500,000 policy limit), professional liability insurance ($1,000,000), 

comprehensive general liability insurance ($2,000,000 combined single limit, including personal injury, 

contractual liability, and broad form property damage liability), and automobile liability insurance 

($2,000,000 combined single limit for owned, non-owned, rented, and hired vehicles). All policies must 

name the Corporation as an additional insured.  

Question #92:  How do you currently manage rolling versus time-bound grant programs, and what 

challenges do you face with each? 

Answer #92: Each grant program is managed separately. We are looking to build efficiencies around 

user experience in the application process, automated notifications to applicants, and streamline the 

post-award processes. 

  

Question #93:  Can the agency provide an overview of the data migration scope and estimated data 

volumes, including the number of programs, applications, awards, historical records, and attachments? 

Answer #93: See answers to Q32 and Q37. 

  

Question #94:  Can you provide sample end-to-end process flows for the grant programs referenced in 

the RFP? 

Answer #94: No. 

  

Question #95:  Are all programs expected to follow a standardized intake, review, approval, award, and 

post-award lifecycle, or do programs have materially different workflows? 



Answer #95: See answers to Q9. 

  

Question #96:  Are integrations expected to be real-time, batch-based, or file-based? 

Answer #96: Proposers should propose what is reasonable for integrations based on the system 

design and project scope.  

  

Question #97:  Could you provide details of the current internal IT landscape, including core systems 

supporting grants, finance, reporting, identity management, and the hosting model (on-premise, cloud, 

or hybrid)? 

Answer #97: This will be shared with the selected vendor.  

  

Question #98:  What system is currently used for Grants Management, and what key limitations or pain 

points are driving this procurement? 

Answer #98: See answer to Q65. 

  

Question #99:  Is there an estimated or not-to-exceed budget for this opportunity? 

Answer #99: See answer to Q47.  

  

Question #100: Does the agency allow offshore development and testing resources, provided that all 

production and sensitive data remains within the United States and strict security and compliance 

controls are enforced?  

Answer #100: See answer to Q48.  

  

Question #101:  What is the expected go-live date or target implementation timeline? 

Answer #101:  See answer to Q6. 

  

Question #102:  Has the agency reviewed or conducted any vendor demonstrations for a Grants 

Management solution in the last 12 months? If yes, can you share the vendors or software platforms 

that were evaluated? 

Answer #102: See answer to Q26. 

  

Question #103:  Could the Corporation please confirm whether there are any page limits or length 

restrictions for RFP responses? 



Answer #103:  There are no page limit or length restrictions for the RFP responses.  

  

Question #104:  Can the Agency confirm the anticipated number of internal users and external users 

who will access and use the proposed application? 

Answer #104: See answers to Q1 and Q3.  

  

Question #105:  Can the Agency please specify the number of client references that should be 

submitted as part of the proposal? 

Answer #105: Client references should be additive to any proposal but are not required for 

submission. The Corporation reserves the right to request references during the review process.  

  

Question #106:  For cost estimation purposes, can the Agency provide the detailed Bill of Materials 

(BOM) for this requirement? 

Answer #106:  There is no product manufacturing anticipated through this contract.  

  

Question #107:  Of the 6 programs, how many require a different front-facing application? Do they all 

have separate workflows? 

Answer #107: They each have their own front-facing application.  

  

Question #108:  Which 6 programs does RICC want to administer through this platform? 

Answer #108: See answer to Q18. 

  

Question #109:  Will data migration be required?  If so, from which platform? How many programs will 

need to be migrated? 

Answer #109: Yes, data migration will be required for all programs. Additionally, see answers to Q36 

and Q58. 

  

Question #110:  With fewer than 10 internal staff needing to be primary users, and additional staff 

needing to review applications, what is the total number of RICC staff to need access? 

Answer #110:       That will be determined as the contract is developed.  

  

Question #111:  Define "supporting continuity of operations for any grant programs that are active or 

accepting applications" - what scope of support is RICC seeking? 



Answer #111:       The Corporation is seeking support with the migration of existing data into whatever 

system is selected, as well as reasonable expedience in the launch of the new system, as some grants 

are currently open. 

 

Question #112:  Regarding the certification of individuals in proposal, we typically assign projects after 

contract award in order to ensure the availability of the right personnel. We will provide the resumes of 

each individual's team lead, as well as a description of the roles & responsibilities for the project team as 

a whole. Is it this an acceptable approach for RICC? 

Answer #112: Yes.  

  

Question #113:  Would RICC consider waiving the 15% MWBE participation goal if the firm does not 

have any written agreements with subcontractors or any person who is not a full-time employee of our 

company? 

Answer #113:       The State’s 15% MWBE participation goal cannot be waived. The Corporation does not 

require 15% MWBE participation for every contract.  

  

Question #114:  Can the RFP Certification Cover Form be signed via electronic signature? 

Answer #114:       Yes. 

 

 

 

***End of Addendum *** 


